Public Document Pack

North Devon Council
Brynsworthy Environment Centre
Barnstaple
North Devon EX31 3NP
K. Miles
Chief Executive.

LICENSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SUB COMMITTEE D
A meeting of the Licensing and Community Safety Sub Committee D will be held as a
Virtual – Online meeting on TUESDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2020 at 10.00 am.
Members of the Committee

Councilllor Biederman (Chair)
Councillors Bulled and Gubb

AGENDA
1.

Virtual meetings procedure - briefing etiquette
Chair to report

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by
the meeting as a matter of urgency

4.

Declarations of Interest
(Please telephone Corporate and Community Services to prepare a form for you
before the meeting. Interests must be re-declared when the item is called, and
Councillors must leave the meeting if necessary).

5.

To agree the agenda between Part 'A and Part 'B'
(Confidential Restricted Information).

PART 'A'
6.

Application for the variation of a Premises Licence: The Old Cream Shop, 8
Hobbs Hill, Croyde, Devon, EX33 1LZ (reference number: 051959) (Pages 5 48)
Report by Acting Service Lead (Licensing), (attached)

PART 'B'
Nil

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253
NOTE: Pursuant to Part 3, Annexe 1, paragraph 3 of the Constitution, Members
should note that:
"If a Member:
(a)
(b)

Arrives at a meeting during the consideration of an item; or
Leaves a meeting at any time during the consideration of an item;

They shall not:
(i)
(ii)

propose or second any motion or amendment; or
cast a vote

16.11.20

2

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making.
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is
respected.
The rules that the Council will apply are:
1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we
know recording is taking place and a reminder will be issued at the
commencement of virtual meetings.
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording
if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public
is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. In a virtual
meeting the public will be excluded from the meeting while in Part B.
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that
agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the
earliest opportunity. Public contributions to virtual meetings will be recorded,
unless, at the Chair’s discretion, recording is deemed in appropriate in accordance
with point 2 above.
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or
misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.
Notes for guidance:
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team
on
01271
388278,
email
communications@northdevon.gov.uk.
3

Meeting Etiquette Reminder for Members
Members are reminded to:
 Join the meeting at least 10-15 minutes prior to the commencement to ensure that the
meeting starts on time.
 Behave as you would in a formal committee setting.
 Address Councillors and officers by their full names.
 Do not have Members of your household in the same room.
 Be aware of what is in screen shot.
 Mute your microphone when you are not talking.
 Switch off video if you are not speaking.
 Only speak when invited to do so by the Chair.
 Speak clearly (if you are not using video then please state your name)
 If you’re referring to a specific page, mention the page number.
 Switch off your video and microphone after you have spoken.
 The only person on video will be the Chair and the one other person speaking.
 Only use the Chat function to register that you wish to speak or to move or second a
motion.
Virtual attendance by members of the public

If members of the public wish to attend virtually, please contact Corporate and
Community services on 01271 388253 or memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk by 12pm
on the Monday preceding the meeting.

4

Agenda Item 6
OPEN

NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT TO LICENSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SUB-COMMITTEE
HEARING: 24 NOVEMBER 2020
Application by: The Old Cream Shop Ltd
Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence: The Old Cream
Shop, 8 Hobbs Hill, Croyde, Devon, EX33 1LZ
Reference Number: 051959
REPORT BY ACTING SERVICE LEAD (LICENSING)

1.

INTRODUCTION
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present an application for the
variation of a premises licence in respect of The Old Cream Shop,
8 Hobbs Hill, Croyde, Devon, EX33 1LZ.
1.2 The application (Appendix A) is made by The Old Cream Shop Ltd
and requests to vary the current licensing activity:
1.2.1

Permit the supply of alcohol on and off the premises.

1.3 The Licensing Authority has received two relevant representations
in regard to the application which gives rise to this hearing:
1.3.1

A letter submitted by Samuels Solicitors, 18 Alexandra
Road, Barnstaple, Devon, EX33 1LZ on behalf of Mr & Mrs
L Vickery, 6 Hobbs Hill, Croyde, Devon, EX33 1LZ
(Appendix E).

1.4 One representation has been received from a Responsible
Authority:
1.4.1

A Letter from Mr Rob Parkinson, Environmental Health
Officer (Agency) (Appendix D).

1.4.2

On 3 November 2020 an email was received from Mr Andy
Cole (Service Lead – Environmental Protection) advising
that after reviewing the case history and agreeing
amendments to the application he has withdrawn the
representation. (Appendix E).

1.5 The relevant representation meets the Licensing Objectives as
follows:Licensing Objectives
Public Safety
Prevention of Public Nuisance

Page 5

x
x

Agenda Item 6
OPEN

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 That the Sub Committee:
Considers the request for determination of the application for the
variation of the premises licence and additional representations
included in appendices A to K of this report, together with any oral
submissions at the hearing.
2.2 In determining this application, the Sub-Committee must take one
of the following steps, as it considers necessary for the promotion
of the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee should be mindful
that in making their decision, if it involves the modification or
imposition of conditions or the rejection in whole or in part of the
application, such a decision could only be justified if it is made to
promote the licensing objectives:
2.2.1

The steps are:
(a)

to grant the licence subject to:
(i)

(b)
(c)
(d)

the terms sought by the applicant, including
such conditions as are consistent with the
operating schedule.
(ii) such conditions as are consistent with the
operating schedule accompanying the
application, modified to such extent as the
authority considers necessary for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.
to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the
licensable activities to which the application relates.
to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the
Designated Premises Supervisor.
to reject the application.

2.3 Should the Sub-Committee decide to grant the application, it is
recommended that this be subject to conditions which seek to
mitigate the potential for contraventions of the Licensing
Objectives.
2.4 The following conditions are recommended:
2.4.1

The following conditions were submitted by the applicant
and included as (Appendix K) of the report.

2.5 It will be best practice, as well as a matter of elemental fairness,
that at a hearing, the licensing authority ensures that parties are
aware of any condition the licensing authority is proposing to add of
its own volition to a licence, in advance of the decision being made.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6
OPEN

2.6 When Members are considering adding a condition that has not
been addressed during the hearing, for example because it is
raised after the Members have retired to consider their decision,
the parties should be given an opportunity to address the Members
on the new condition being considered. This can be done
informally, for example, by the legal advisor passing a message to
the waiting parties.
2.7 If the proposed condition proves controversial, the parties should
be afforded the opportunity of addressing the Members further on
both the principle of the condition or its specific working. This is
likely to serve the interests of all parties, including the Members
who will be better informed about the impact and practicability of
their proposal. Moreover, a failure to follow this approach risks
attracting criticism from the appeal courts.
2.8 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.

2.8.1

The recommendations are made so that the SubCommittee fulfils its duty under section 18 of the Licensing
Act 2003 to determine the application for a premises
licence where relevant representations have been made.

2.8.2

The recommendations in relation to the imposition of
conditions on the premises licence are made with a view to
promoting the licensing objectives.

BACKGROUND

3.1 An application to vary the premises licence for The Old Cream
Shop, 8 Hobbs Hill, Croyde, Devon, EX33 1NP, was submitted by
The Old Cream Shop Ltd on the 21 August 2020.
3.2 The current licensable activities and hours permitted are as follows:
Activity

Day

Start

Finish

Supply of Alcohol on and Monday to Sunday
12:00
18:00
off the premises
Seasonal Variation: During the months of July and August the permitted
hours are Monday to Sunday 12:00 hours to 22:00 hours.
Hours open to the public Monday to Sunday
09:00
18:00
Seasonal Variation: During the months of July and August the opening
hours of the premises are Monday to Sunday 08:00 hours to 22:00 hours.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6
OPEN

3.3 The original proposed licensable activities and hours requested
were as follows:
Activity

Day

Start

Finish

Supply of Alcohol on and Monday to Sunday
12:00
18:00
off the premises
Seasonal Variation: From 1 April to 31 October Monday to Sunday 12:00
hours to 22:00 hours.
Hours open to the public Monday to Sunday
09:00
18:00
Seasonal Variation: From 1 April to 31 October Monday to Sunday 08:00
hours to 22:20 hours.

3.4 Following mediation with the Environmental Protection Team the
application has been amended as follows:
Activity

Day

Start

Finish

Supply of Alcohol on and Monday to Sunday
12:00
18:00
off the premises
Seasonal Variation: From 15 May to 30 September Monday to Sunday
12:00 hours to 22:00 hours.
Hours open to the public Monday to Sunday
09:00
18:00
Seasonal Variation: From 15 May to 30 September Monday to Sunday
08:00 hours to 22:20 hours.

3.5 Any grant of a premises licence may be subject to conditions
applied by the Licensing Authority as a result of this hearing.
3.6 A plan of the premises is attached at Appendix B.
3.7 A location plan is attached at Appendix C.

4.

RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS
4.1 The relevant licensing objectives are:
Licensing Objective
Public Safety
Prevention of Public Nuisance

x
x

4.2 Responsible Authorities:
4.2.1

Devon and Cornwall Police – No representation received

4.2.1.1 Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service – No
representation received.
4.2.1.2 NDC Environmental Protection – the following comments
received. (Appendix D) & (Appendix E).

Page
4.2.1.3 NDC – Health Food
and8Safety – No representation
received.

Agenda Item 6
OPEN

4.2.1.4 NDC Planning – the following comments received
(Appendix 6)
4.2.1.5 NDC Licensing – No representation received.
4.2.1.6 Devon County Council, Business Strategy and Support
Services (Child Protection) - No representation received.
4.2.1.7 Devon County Council, Trading Standards – No
representation received.
4.2.1.8 Public Health Devon – No representation received.
4.2.1.9 Home Office Immigration Enforcement- No representation
received.
4.3 The Licensing Authority had received two relevant representations
but confirmation has now been received that the representation
from Mr R Parkinson Environmental Health Officer has been
withdrawn by Mr Andy Cole (Service Lead - Environmental
Protection) following mediation with the applicant.
4.3.1

Mr R Parkinson, Environmental Health Officer (Agency)
and Mr Andy Cole (Service Lead – Environmental
Protection) (Appendix D) & (Appendix E).

4.3.2 Samuels Solicitors, 18 Alexandra Road, Barnstaple,
Devon, EX32 8BA on behalf of Mr & Mrs Lee Vickery of 6
Hobb’s Hill, Croyde, Devon, EX33 1LZ (Appendix E).
4.3.3 The letter of representation expresses concern with regard
to two of the licensing objectives of public safety and
public nuisance.
4.3.4 A warning letter was issued to the premises licence holder
on 30 July 2020, by the Licensing Team, in respect of
complaints of operating beyond the licensed hours.
(Appendix F)
4.3.5 Mr Alistair Poll of The Old Cream Shop Ltd has confirmed
that he has put in the following measures to reduce the
potential for noise nuisance:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Moved the speaker from next to the neighbour’s
property to the other side. It is to be moved further
away once the wiring has been changed.
The BBQ has been moved from next to the
neighbour’s property to the far end of the property,
which is approximately 30 meters from the
neighbour’s living quarters.
Purchased a professional decibel meter, and
monitor noise levels, ensuring they always remain
under 85Page
decibels.
9

Agenda Item 6
OPEN

(iv)

Will erect signage to remind customers to respect
neighbours.

4.3.6 Following mediation with the Service Lead - Environmental
Protection the following has also been agreed:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Amend the application to 1800 – 2200, 15th May –
30th September.
The only music to be played will be recorded music
at a background level – from midday to 2200 – and
that no live music will be played.
The speaker will be moved to an alternative location
to mitigate noise impact.
Reduce the number of customers allowed in the
premises from 60 (as is currently allowed under the
fire risk assessment) to 50.
Install signage in prominent locations within the
premises and outside reminding customers of the
need to avoid any anti-social behaviour (including
excessive noise) which could have a detrimental
effect on your neighbours.
Have at least 2 members of staff available outside,
who will enforce this as part of their role and
implement a policy to warn people once before then
asking them to leave if their behaviours continues.
Will move the BBQ to an alternative location which
is not on the boundary of the neighbouring
premises.

4.3.7 Application has also been made to remove Mr Alistair Poll
as the Designated Premises Supervisor and replace him
with Mr Isaac Harper, which has been approved.
5.

RELEVANT LICENSING POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
5.1 The Sub-Committee is entitled to draw upon any of the
considerations outlined in its Licensing Policy document. However,
the most significant policy considerations appear to be the
following:



6.

Paragraphs 3.3 to 3.3.2 (Public Safety).
Paragraphs 3.4 to 3.4.3 (Prevention of Public Nuisance).

RELEVANT STATUTORY GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The Sub-Committee is entitled to draw upon any of the
considerations outlined in the Statutory Guidance issued under
Sec. 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and published by the Home
Office. However, the most significant statutory guidance appears
to be in the following:



Paragraphs 2.7 to 2.9 (Public Safety).
Paragraphs 2.15 to 2.21
(Public
Page
10 Nuisance).

Agenda Item 6
OPEN

7.

OPTIONS
7.1 The Act at section 18(3a) states that, before determining the
application, the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to consider
it and any relevant representations. It must, having regard to the
application and any relevant representations, take such steps
mentioned in section 18 (4) (if any) as it considers necessary for
the promotion of the licensing objectives.
7.2 In determining this application, the Sub Committee must take one
of the following steps as outlined in section 2.2.1 of this report.
7.3 If a licence is granted, any relevant mandatory conditions must be
imposed in addition to any conditions the subcommittee decides to
impose at the hearing. Mandatory conditions are standard
conditions imposed by way of legislation and in respect of which
there is no power to vary.
7.4 Any party to the hearing has the right of appeal to North and East
Devon Magistrates’ Court following the determination of the
application under section 181 of the Act.

8.

9.

BACKGROUND PAPERS


Licensing Act 2003.



Amended guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003 (Home Office April 2017).



Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.



North Devon Council Licensing Act 2003 Policy Approved
21.11.18.

APPENDICES
Appendix A

Application for the grant of a Premises Licence

Appendix B

Plan of premises

Appendix C

Location Plan

Appendix D

Email from Mr Rob Parkinson EHO (Agency)

Appendix E

Email from Mr Andy Cole (Service Lead – Environmental
Protection)

Appendix F

Warning letter issued 30 July 2020

Appendix G

Letter from Samuel Solicitors on behalf of Mr & Mrs
Vickery, 6 Hobbs
Hill,11
Croyde
Page

Agenda Item 6
OPEN

Appendix H

Response from Planning

Appendix I

Response from Fire Authority

Appendix J

Current Licence Conditions

Appendix K

Proposed Licensing Conditions submitted by applicant

Author:
Date:
Reference:

Mrs Shirley Loder Acting Licensing Officer
10/11/20
051959

Page 12

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 13

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 15

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 16

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 18

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 19

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 20

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 21

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 22

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 23

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

Page 24

Agenda Item 6
Appendix B

Page 25

Agenda Item 6
Appendix B

Page 26

Agenda Item 6
Appendix C

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Appendix D

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Appendix E

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
Appendix E

Page 32

Agenda Item 6
Appendix E

Page 33

Agenda Item 6
Appendix E

Page 34

Agenda Item 6
Appendix F

Page 35

Agenda Item 6
Appendix F

Page 36

Agenda Item 6
Appendix G

Page 37

Agenda Item 6
Appendix G

Page 38

Agenda Item 6
Appendix H

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Appendix I

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Appendix J

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Appendix K

Page 45

Agenda Item 6
Appendix K

Page 46

Agenda Item 6
Appendix K

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

